


PORTSMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 30, 2016

[bookmark: _GoBack]
11:00 AM – Union Church, Prudence Island 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   	Keith E. Hamilton, James A. Seveney, Kevin M. Aguiar,
                                                David M. Gleason, Elizabeth A. Pedro 

Members Absent: 		Michael A. Buddemeyer and Joseph W. Robicheau

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

A moment of silence for our men and women around the world in harm’s way.
 
SITTING AS THE PORTSMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL

SITTING AS THE BOARD OF LICENSE COMMISSIONERS

1.   Daily Liquor License Application:

Portsmouth Firefighters Local 1949, for the Portsmouth Fire Department’s 80th Anniversary Dinner at Glen Park on August 20, 2016 from 4:00PM to 8:00 PM

A motion by Mr. Seveney, seconded by Ms. Pedro, to approve.  All voted in favor of the motion.

A motion by Ms. Pedro, seconded by Mr. Seveney, to adjourn as the Board of License 
Commissioners.  All voted in favor of the motion.

ADJOURN

TAX VOUCHERS

Request Approval for Tax Vouchers #20160730-01 to #20160730-15. / M. Helfand

A motion by Mr. Seveney, seconded by Ms. Pedro, to approve.  All voted in favor of the motion.

OLD BUSINESS

OB 1 - Update – Prudence Island Roadway Improvement Project. / J. Pisano, VHB & B. 
      	Woodhead    

Deputy Director of Public Works Brian Woodhead stated that eight contractors attended the pre-bid conference, five bids were received.  A November 2016 completion date is anticipated. 

The following concerns of Prudence Island residents were addressed by Brian Woodhead (BW), Deputy Public Works Director and James Pisano (JP) of VHB:

Dave Cooley, 0458 Narragansett Road, asked about speed control measures.  
JP - No speed bumps, but the roadway will be a bit narrower to control traffic.
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Ed Aldrich, 0306 Narragansett, suggested temporary removable speed bumps.  
BW – These would be difficult for emergency services transport.

Richard Loughlin, 01002 Narragansett Ave, asked about the guardrail material. 
JP - Wood.

Robin Webber, 0119 Hillside Rd, inquired about the low lying area (Mill Creek) could you raise the road bed and have better sized culverts?  
JP - This was not part of the plan.  
President Hamilton stated that they are raising the center of the road so there will be better drainage.  Bids were from Broadway to Rocky. 
BW - Bids were from $2.1 million to $4.5 million.

Richard Loughlin, 01002 Narragansett Ave, can you do a real cut and patch to areas? 

Richard Homan, 0363 Narragansett Ave, Broadway Hill impassible in winter and spring  
JP - This was not part of the plan.

Doug Brown, 25 Bay Ave, understood it was part of plan.  Broadway Hill is the worst part of the Island, also Narragansett near Ann. 

President Hamilton, is it possible to take off 100 feet of Narragansett and add that area? 

Sue Messina, 094 Cliff Rd, last meeting here this was all discussed and Broadway Hill was part of project.

Eugene Cardin, 0796 Narragansett Ave, will the Prudence Island Water Dept. work be done before this? Can there be a drain at the bottom of every street? 
BW – They will be re-grading the road properly.

William Silvia, 0341 Mt Pleasant Ave, asked specifically what the process was to pave the roads.
BW - There is “value engineering” they have to meet 95% compaction.

JP - They are doing a full depth reconstruction of the roadway with a new gravel base and paving on top.

Joe Fertitta, 34 Cliff Road, who makes the decision on how to go? 
BW - The Town and VHB decide.  The findings will be presented to the Town Council at the August 22nd meeting.

Ken Garlick, 0671 Broadway, both ends of Broadway have an issue, West and East sides.  Will there be a penalty for not completing the project? -
BW - a per day penalty.
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Ed Aldrich, do you anticipate complete road closures?  Requesting signage at each end. 
BW – a message sign is not in the contract.  Perhaps a detour sign can be arranged.  There will be flaggers and police.

Karen Stevenson, 0542 Narragansett Ave, communication with the ferry – concerns about delays when trying to get to the ferry. 

Carter Cooley, 0470 Narragansett Ave, procedures to supervise and manage work. 

President Hamilton stated that Mr. Woodhead will be there to oversee the work.
JP - There will be spot checks on drainage, compaction tests and tests on the amount of pavement.

Finance Director/Deputy Town Administrator James Lathrop stated there is $2.3 million left of the money approved.  A 10% contingency will be proposed to the Town Council.

Dave Cooley, 0458 Narragansett Ave, restrictions for driveways while work is being done. 

There will be no working on weekends and the Town’s website will have a schedule in PDF.

Judy Little, 048 Providence Avenue, requested advance notice of detours. 

Robin Webber, suggested using Code Red (reverse 911) to alert residents of detours and work.

Ms. Pedro asked if they should vote for changes.

President Hamilton stated they have to open the bids first.

It was suggested to make the road near the church to the PIA two ways during construction.

Peter O’Hannion asked the Council to invest the extra money and get it done right.

OB 2 - Update/Discussion - Internet Service Access on Prudence Island. / E. Aldrich & R. 
Rainer

Ed Aldrich suggested alternative technologies and vendors.  He had previously surveyed residents to gauge their interest.  He asked for a commitment from the Town Council.  He will provide the Council a copy of his report from Axiom to place on the Town’s website.

President Hamilton stated the Council will possibly be looking at an RFP.

Ms. Pedro requested the results from the survey Mr. Aldrich conducted.
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Mr. Aldrich stated his survey showed that 125 residents want internet of which 60 to 70 are seasonal residents.  He stated that there are 425 houses on the Island.

Ms. Pedro stated that the Town is not going to be in the internet business.

Ann Deschamps, 16 Alta Vista Road, asked if it will cost the taxpayers and what if you do not want it.

President Hamilton stated there would be no cost to taxpayers and one does not have to have it.

Mr. Rainer stated that he has tried to get big internet providers involved but it won’t happen.  wide spread broadband is not even on Aquidneck Island.  The Town departments and Schools are hooked up to OSHEAN.  They will have to look into the price of bandwidth and equipment.
They will be looking into grants to help this happen.  It only works if enough people use it.  The goal is to make it close to costs.  Aquidneck Island people pay for their internet.

Ms. Aldrich stated that grant money would enhance the public safety’s performance.

Mr. Rainer stated that the reality is that it will probably cost $100 per month.

Ms. Pedro stated that a tower would have to be built on Prudence.

Mr. Aguiar asked if we build it will they come?

Mr. Seveney asked if the next step was an RFP.

Mr. Aldrich stated he feels there are 125 full time residents.

A motion by Mr. Seveney, seconded by Ms. Pedro, to have Town staff prepare an RFP.  All 
voted in favor of the motion.

OB 3 - Update – Waste Oil Disposal. / B. Woodhead   

Deputy Public Works Director Brian Woodhead provided an update including projected costs.

Bob Marshall said he estimated that once the used oil that has been stockpiled on Prudence Island is removed, additional trips to remove the oil would occur once a year at most.

Mr. Gleason suggested burning the oil in the manner used by many auto repair shops.  

Questions followed about disposal of other hazardous waste and whether an approved vendor could remove it all.
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President Hamilton said he would contact RIREC for information.

It was noted that the oil would have to be filtered before it is burned.

Jean Carden spoke on vertically integrated burners.

Judi Staven suggested the Town look into the OSKAR program with DEM.

It was stated that there is a need for more recycling bins for cardboard.

The Council next heard additional Prudence Island business:  New Business 1 and 3. 

NB 1 - Request Approval to Form an Exploratory Committee to Consider Investing in a 
      	Ferry Terminal in the Town of Portsmouth. / R. Masse 

President Hamilton stated that many residents of Prudence Island wish to keep the ferry landing in Bristol because of the services there.  The Robin Rug business is willing to rent parking spaces.

It was asked what happens if Bristol cancels the lease for the ferry dock.  

Mr. Seveney stated that this is a business opportunity for Bristol.

The town should explore an alternate location.

Mr. Seveney suggested a committee to explore options and review them with the Town Planner.
But we don’t want to give Bristol the idea we are moving.

Janet Brown, 025 Bay Ave, stated that the lot across from the ferry is closed because Robin Rug business upped his rates for Bristol.

Mr. Aldrich stated that EMS and EMT services personnel need to park in Bristol to work on Prudence Island. 

A motion by Ms. Pedro, seconded by Mr. Seveney, to form an exploratory committee with the 
Town Planner and some people on Prudence Island and the main land.  All voted in favor of the motion.

NB 3 - Open Forum for Discussion of Prudence Island Issues. / K. Hamilton

Golf Carts – asking town to advocate for a change in state law in January so golf carts can be operated on the streets of Prudence Island from dawn to dusk or 24 /7.

Transfer Station hours – it is supposed to be manned on weekends and is not.
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Transfer Station stickers – Prudence has the option of a four-month sticker, but most stay on the Island for five months.  Why can’t they get a six-month sticker like the War College students.

President Hamilton suggested this be sent to the Recycling Committee.

Prudence Island is the cash cow for the Town and residents want better treatment.  It was asked where their money goes.

President Hamilton responded that everything costs more to come to Prudence:  Public Safety services, Volunteer Fire Department support.

Mr. Helfand, Tax Collector/Assessor responded that $1,530,000 was brought in from Prudence Island taxpayers which is approximately 3.02% of total tax levy.

The boat ramp has disintegrated and can only be used at high tide.

President Hamilton asked Brian Woodhead to look at it. Perhaps it can be listed in the next round of DEM grants.

Request for information on the budget from the Finance Director.

Request for a shelter for recyclable items.

Concerns about the expiration of tickets and passes for the ferry.  Isn’t that against the law in RI?  Also, why are the discount tickets only sold on Prudence Island?

Mr. Antaya of A&R responded that the PUC approved the expiration dates.  He also stated that the selling of tickets is a matter of manning in Bristol.

Solicitor Gavin will look into the tickets’ expiration dates.

Could car tickets be valid for 90 days.

Wasn’t there an open space acquisition on Prudence Island last year.

TIME:  1:08 PM - Break
TIME:  1:18 PM - Return

OB 4 -  Request Approval to Award the Contract to Complete the Leonard Brown House 
Renovation Project to the Lowest Bidder:The Damon Company of Newport, RI/J Lathrop  

Finance Director/Deputy Town Administrator Lathrop gave an overview of the work to be done and the negotiations to reduce the bid to $822,325.  No wainscoting or crown molding.  Parking behind the building removed.  No kitchen cabinets or sinks.  The completion goal is Spring 2017.
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Mr. Seveney asked if the $160,000 is from remaining funds.

Mr. Lathrop responded that the money will come from other capital projects of Brown House.

Mr. Gleason asked what activities will be held at the building.  

Mr. Lathrop stated it will be used for Recreation Department housing, with two offices for six organizations upstairs and down, two permanent meeting rooms, and bathrooms for the public.

Mr. Gleason asked why rooms were left for the kitchens if eliminated.

Mr. Lathrop responded that for possible upgrade in the future.

Ms. Pedro asked when completion was expected.

Mr. Lathrop stated April or May of 2017.

Ms. Pedro asked how the offices will work.

Mr. Lathrop responded that there will be a downstairs meeting room.

President Hamilton stated that youth sports organizations need a place to keep records from year to year.

Ms. Pedro stated that any permanent offices should be rented.

Mr. Rainer stated that everything will be run through the Recreation Director. Filing space will be made available.

Mr. Lathrop stated that file storage space will be over the wing.

Ms. Pedro asked if there is a time constraint on this decision and why is it being heard on Prudence Island instead of a regular Council meeting?

Judi Staven agreed and requested it be placed on the agenda of August 22nd.

Mr. Lathrop stated that for the most part these were positive comments.

Mr. Aguiar and Mr. Seveney stated that this was fully made public and this gets it started three weeks earlier.

President Hamilton stated it doesn’t make this specifically for sports, all groups will be able to use the building.
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A motion by Mr. Gleason, seconded by Ms. Pedro, to approve the awarding of the contract to 
complete the Leonard Brown House Renovation Project to the lowest bidder: The Damon Company of Newport, RI.  All voted in favor of the motion.

OB 5 - Request Approval to Award Dog Park Contract to Yardworks. / R. Rainer

Mr. Rainer reported that the Dog Park Committee has secured the $83,900 funding required to 
cover the contract.

A motion by Ms. Pedro, seconded by Mr. Seveney, to approve the awarding of the Dog Park 
contract to Yardworks.  All voted in favor of the motion.
  
NEW BUSINESS

NB 1 - Request Approval to Form an Exploratory Committee to Consider Investing in a 
      	Ferry Terminal in the Town of Portsmouth. / R. Masse 

This item was heard before OB 4.

NB 2 - Discussion/Action – Request for Proposal (RFP) for Use of the Lower Glen Farm 
Complex. / R. Rainer & R. Talipsky 

A motion by Mr. Seveney, seconded by Mr. Gleason, to approve release of the RFP.  All voted 
in favor of the motion.

NB 3 - Open Forum for Discussion of Prudence Island Issues. / K. Hamilton

This item was heard before OB 4.

FUTURE MEETINGS

Aug    22    7:00 PM – Town Council Meeting
Sept    14    7:00 PM – Town Council Meeting (Wednesday, due to primary election)
Sept    26    7:00 PM – Town Council Meeting

A motion by Ms. Pedro, seconded by Mr. Seveney, to adjourn.  All voted in favor of the 
motion.

ADJOURN

Time: 2:08 PM					__________________________
							Joanne M. Mower, Town Clerk




